
AGENDA

MONROE 
NORTH 
TIFA 

Board Members: 

Jim Baldwin  •  Shaun Biel  •  Mayor Rosalynn Bliss   •  Diedre Deering •  Kayem Dunn  •  Jim Talen  •  Rick Winn 

DOWNTOWN GRAND RAPIDS INC. 

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 
10:00 a.m. Meeting   
29 Pearl Street NW

 

1. Call to order

2. Approve Meeting Minutes from December 14, 2022 (10:00) 
Motion – Biel   |  (enclosure)

3. Accept Financials from March 31, 2023 (10:02) 
Motion – Chapman   |  (enclosure) 

4. FY2022 Audit (10:05)
Motion – Chapman   |  (enclosure) 

5. Adopt FY23 Budget (10:15)
Motion – Kelly   |  (enclosure)

6. DGRI President & CEO Report (10:25)
Info Item – Kelly

7. Public Comment (10:30)

8. Board Member Discussion (10:35)

9. Adjournment 



Meeting of the City of Grand Rapids Tax Increment Financing 
Authority December 14, 2022 

1. Call to Order – This meeting was called to order at 9:49 by Chair Shaun Biel

Attendance 

Present:  Shaun Biel, Diedre Deering, Jim Talen, Rick Winn, Kayem Dunn and Mayor 
Rosalynn Bliss, and Jim Baldwin. 

Absent: 

Others Present: Tim Kelly (Executive Director), Arielle Fenlon (Interim Recording 
Secretary), Alexandra Oostendorp, Mark Miller, Bill Kirk, Melvin Eledge, Kim Van Driel, 
Megan Catcho, Marion Bonneaux, and Katie Moore (DGRI Staff). 

2. Approved Meeting Minutes from June 8, 2022
Motion: Member Dunn, supported by Member Baldwin, moved approval of the minutes from the
June 8, 2022, Board Meeting as presented. Motion Carried unanimously.

3. Approved November 30, 2022, Financials
Motion: Member Winn, Supported by Member Deering, moved to accept Statement C: Schedule of
May 30, 2022 Expenditures as presented. Motion carried unanimously.

4. 6th and Canal Street Master Plan Update
Mark Miller, Managing Director of Planning and Design, presented the 6th Street and Canal Park
Master Plan. As a reminder, Miller stated several foundational elements are in the Master Plan which
influences the design work: Flood Protection and Resilience, Connectivity with the Grand River,
neighborhood and city, Ecological Health of the River and its edges, and Flexible use/increase cultural
and inclusive programming opportunities.

Miller stated today, we will focus on Canal Park since 6th Street Park is a larger, long-term capital
project. Miller reviewed the near-term steps, including review meetings and submitting for the EGLE



permit end of February. We hope the permitting process goes smoothly and allows us to move this 
project forward. The design work is estimated to be 90% complete in March, begin the bidding 
process in May, start construction in July 2023, and finish by July 2024. Miller reviewed design 
elements, including a pavilion, a trail, and a new playground. 

Miller reviewed the financial pieces, stating the estimated project cost for Canal Street Park is $6.5 
million. The flood bond will be a $1.8 million investment. Today MNTIFA has $750k in its budget, we 
anticipate asking the DDA to match that investment, and the park's millage is contributing $450k. 
That leaves a $3.5 million gap, and we will eventually seek additional funding.  

Member Dunn asked if the pavilion would be covered and if there were considerations of adding 
public art or sculptures to the park. Miller answered, yes, the pavilion will be covered, and there are 
ongoing discussions around public art and plantings.  

Mayor Bliss inquired about the parking lot near 6th Street Park and if there are opportunities to 
enhance the space. Miller stated yes, we can explore this with the Parks Department and Devries, who 
holds ownership. Miller added that the city parking lots in the parks are becoming park spaces. 

5. World of Winter (WoW) Update
Kim Van Driel, Director of Public Space Management, provided update on World of Winter 2023, the
two-month long festival from January to early March. We currently have 14 curated art installations, 41
planned events, 12 Activate this Place Grants for local event organizers, and window activation
installations. VanDriel presented snapshots of the various installations and events, including House of
Cards, Lite Bright, Roaming Gnomes, Talking Heads, and Light Projections, Human Hungry Hippo,
Fire and Ice Event, Great Lakes Snow Snake Competition, Walking Tours, and Winters a Drag—
Highlighting Queen of the North!

Bill Kirk, Director of Communications, discussed communications and marketing behind WoW. We
have a mix of digital, print, and radio marketing, like last year with a change of scope, for both local
focus and regional focus. Kirk reviewed the various DGRI paid advertisement avenues for the local
focus and Experience GR’s supporting in advertising WoW regional. The expansion was discussed in
regard to the future and the size the festival could reach.

6. DGRI President and CEO Report
Kelly shared the River Construction Coffee Conversations event on January 11th for small businesses
and contractors for river opportunities. Also shared was the opening of a downtown restaurant, Noodle
Pig.

7. Public Comment
No public comment

8. Board member discussion
Holiday wishes were made.

The meeting was adjourned at 10:33AM 

Minutes taken by:  
Arielle Fenlon 
Downtown Grand Rapids, Inc 



          
 
 
DATE:  April 4, 2023 
 
TO:  Monroe North Tax Increment Financing Authority 
 
FROM: Tricia Chapman 
  Administrative Services Officer II 
 
SUBJECT: FY2023 Interim Financial Statements Through March 31, 2023 
 
 
Attached are the Monroe North Tax Increment Financing Authority interim financial 
statements for the first nine months of the Authority’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.    
 
   Statement A:  Balance Sheet  
   Statement B:  Statement of Revenues and Expenses  
   Statement C:  Schedule of Expenditures 
 
The Authority’s balance sheet on Statement A indicates the Authority is in a strong position 
financially with sufficient Pooled Cash to support development plan expenditures for FY2023 
and beyond.   
 
 
The Authority has spent approximately 11% of its budgeted expenditures this fiscal year.  
 
Please contact me at 456-3848 or at tchapman@grcity.us if you have any questions. 
 
Attachments

Agenda Item # 3 
April 12, 2023 
Monroe North TIFA Meeting 

mailto:tchapman@grcity.us


ASSETS
  Pooled Cash and Investments 3,021,324$          
  General Fixed Assets 1,486,800            
  Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (1,486,800)           

TOTAL ASSETS 3,021,324$          

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities
  Accounts Payable -$                    

TOTAL LIABILITIES -                      

Fund Balance / Equity:
  Investments in General Fixed Assets -                      
  Reserve for Compensated Absences 812                     
  Reserve for Encumbrances 724                     
  Reserve for Authorized Projects 3,019,788            

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 3,021,324            

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY 3,021,324$          

Prepared 4/4/2023

MONROE NORTH

STATEMENT A

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY
Balance Sheet
March 31, 2023



  

REVENUES Budget Actual
Property Tax Increment 432,254$     445,270$       

Property Tax Increment - Prior Year Appeals (5,000)         -               
State of Michigan - Personal Property Losses 132,973       144,286        1

Investments Earnings 19,308        146,960        
Miscellaneous Reimbursement -              26                

TOTAL REVENUES 579,535$     736,542$       

EXPENSES
Committed and Ongoing

Contractual Services - Annual Audit 5,572$        5,595$          
Contractual Services - Legal 5,000          890               

General Fund Departments Services 27,389        20,542          
Insurance - General Liability 637             478               

Staff Support / Personnel 100,000       56,371          
Supplies 200             146               

Share of DGRI Administration 7,103          2,814            
Sub-Total Committed and Ongoing 145,901$     86,836          

GR Forward Projects:
Goal #1:  Restore the River as the Draw and Create a Connected
  and Equitable River Corridor

Downtown Planning - GR Forward/River Governance 145,000$     -$              
Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #1 145,000$     -$              

Goal #2:  Create a True Downtown Neighborhood Which is
  Home to a Diverse Population

District Enhancement Grants 50,000$       -$              
Infrastructure Improvements - Miscellaneous 10,000        5,486            

Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #2 60,000$       5,486$          

Goal #3:  Implement a 21st Century Mobility Strategy
Accessibility and Streetscape Improvement 75,000$       -$              

Bicycle Instrastructure Improvements 15,000        -               
Transit Improvements in Monroe North District 150,000       60,003          

Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #3 240,000$     60,003$        

Goal #5:  Reinvest in Public Space, Culture, and Inclusive Programming
Canal Street Park Improvements 750,000$      -$              

Urban Recreation Plan 50,000         -               
Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #5 800,000$     -$              

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,390,901$  152,325$       

EXCESS / (DEFICIT) (811,366)$    584,217$       
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,437,107      
ENDING FUND BALANCE 3,021,324$    

Note 1: State of Michigan reimbursement for the tax increment revenue losses related to
State-mandated industrial and commercial personal property exemptions.  For FY2021,
$134,479 was reimbursed, in FY2022 the reimbursement was $137,086. 

STATEMENT B

FY2023

MONROE NORTH
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY

FY2023 Statement of Revenues and Expenses
July 1, 2022 - March 31, 2023



Date
Posted Vendor Purpose / Project Description Amount

12/20/2022 Plante & Moran, PLLC Annual Audit 2022 Monroe N Financial Statement Audit 5,595.00       
5,595.00       

3/28/2023 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal TIFA Legal Services 12/22 352.00          
3/27/2023 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal DGRI Legal Services TIFA 85.93           
1/16/2023 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal DGRI Legal Services TIFA 51.01           
3/27/2023 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal DGRI Legal Services TIFA 49.38           
3/30/2023 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal DGRI Legal Services TIFA 46.37           
1/16/2023 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal DGRI Legal Services TIFA 35.74           
3/27/2023 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal DGRI Legal Services TIFA 20.19           
1/16/2023 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal Legal services: MN 8/22 18.55           
1/16/2023 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal DGRI Legal Services TIFA 8.93 
1/16/2023 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal DGRI Legal Services TIFA 5.46 
3/30/2023 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal DGRI Legal Services TIFA 5.02 

678.58          

12/6/2022 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Departments Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,282.42       
1/13/2023 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Departments Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,282.42       
2/8/2023 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Departments Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,282.42       
3/8/2023 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Departments Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,282.42       

9,129.68       

12/6/2022 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 53.08           
1/13/2023 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 53.08           
2/8/2023 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 53.08           
3/8/2023 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 53.08           

212.32          

1/13/2023 Fifth Third Bank Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Food/Bev DDA 335.10          
12/20/2022 Jason Paul Reister Share of DGRI Administration 2015 GMC Truck-TIFA 186.00          
12/11/2022 Lisa M Cooper Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 11/22 129.31          
12/11/2022 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Space Lease Dec 22 77.44           
12/13/2022 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Meraki Switch & Maraki Enterprise License and Suppo 64.85           

1/4/2023 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Worksighted IT Lenovo ThinkPad X1 Yoga Gen 7 36.60           
3/15/2023 US Bank National Association Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Membership TIFA 35.90           
1/22/2023 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Worksighted IT Monthly Fees 26.60           
2/8/2023 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Worksighted IT Criterion Remote 2/23 26.60           

3/12/2023 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Worksighted IT CRIT  3/23 26.60           
12/12/2022 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Monthly Billing for Dec 25.31           

1/4/2023 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Worksighted IT Dell Latitude 3420 25.18           
3/6/2023 Julian Newman Enterprises Share of DGRI Administration Culture Creative Prof Development & Training 24.80           

1/22/2023 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Worksighted IT Meraki Switch Proj 19.84           
2/7/2023 Lisa M Cooper Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 01/23 19.44           
1/4/2023 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration It Bill Lenovo ThinkPad E15 Gen 4 15.75           

1/20/2023 Tim Kelly Share of DGRI Administration Truck Registration Fee Reimbursement 14.10           
1/9/2023 Lisa M Cooper Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 12/22 13.95           

12/15/2022 Fifth Third Bank Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Misc TIFA 10.20           
3/12/2023 Lisa M Cooper Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 02/23 8.64 
1/9/2023 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Worksighted IT Microsoft Office 365 7.99 
2/8/2023 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Worksighted IT O365 Agreement 2/23 7.83 

3/12/2023 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Worksighted IT O365 Agreement 3/23 7.68 
3/15/2023 US Bank National Association Share of DGRI Administration Admin: MISC TIFA 7.67 

12/11/2022 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration 29 Pearl Street Mezzanine Office Lease  12/22 7.59 
12/12/2022 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Monthly Billing for Dec 7.50 
2/16/2023 US Bank National Association Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Food & Beverage TIFA 7.11 
2/5/2023 GreatAmerica Financial Services Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 01/23 6.31 

1/30/2023 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet/Phone at 29 Pearl St NW 01/22-02/21 6.00 
2/27/2023 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet/Phone at 29 Pearl St NW 02/23 - 03/23 6.00 
1/4/2023 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet/Phone at 29 Pearl St NW 12/22 - 01/21 5.96 

3/15/2023 US Bank National Association Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Food/Bev TIFA 5.33 
1/13/2023 Fifth Third Bank Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Food/Bev TIFA 5.30 
2/27/2023 GreatAmerica Financial Services Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 02/23 5.21 

12/11/2022 GreatAmerica Financial Services Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 11/22 5.06 
1/9/2023 GreatAmerica Financial Services Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 12/22 4.85 

1/22/2023 Professional Maintenance of Michigan Inc Share of DGRI Administration Carpet Cleaning at DGRI 4.34 
1/4/2023 Professional Maintenance of Michigan Inc Share of DGRI Administration Janitorial Services 12/22 4.27 
2/5/2023 Professional Maintenance of Michigan Inc Share of DGRI Administration Janitorial Services 01/23 4.27 

continued on the next page

STATEMENT C

MONROE NORTH TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY
Schedule of Expenditures

December 1, 2023 - March 31, 2023



 

Monroe North Tax Increment Financing Authority
Schedule of Expenditures
December 1, 2023 - March 31, 2023 Page 2

Date Activity #
Posted Vendor Purpose / Project Description Amount

Continued from previous page

2/27/2023 Professional Maintenance of Michigan Inc.Share of DGRI Administration Janitorial Services 01/23 4.27             
1/22/2023 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Worksighted IT Systems Engineer 4.07             
1/22/2023 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electric 01/23 3.90             

12/15/2022 Fifth Third Bank Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Food/Bev TIFA 3.33             
3/6/2023 Promotional Impact Share of DGRI Administration DGRI Coasters 3.18             

1/22/2023 Cellco Partnership Share of DGRI Administration Cell Phone Service 12/22 3.16             
12/19/2022 Cellco Partnership Share of DGRI Administration Cell Phone Service 11/22 3.13             
12/19/2022 Professional Maintenance of Michigan Inc.Share of DGRI Administration Window Cleaning at DGRI 3.10             
2/28/2023 West Michigan Hispanic Chamber of Com Share of DGRI Administration Annual membership dues 2022 3.10             
2/21/2023 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electric 02/23 3.02             
3/19/2023 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electric 02/23 2.74             

12/15/2022 Fifth Third Bank Share of DGRI Administration TIFA Admin: Food/Bev 1.95             
3/16/2023 US Bank National Association Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Membership TIFA 1.83             
1/29/2023 Pure Water Partners LLC Share of DGRI Administration Water Cooler Lease 1.56             
3/19/2023 JobMatch LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR software 03/23 1.35             
3/15/2023 US Bank National Association Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Subscriptions TIFA 1.24             
1/22/2023 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Worksighted IT Criterion Remote 1.24             

12/19/2022 JobMatch LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR software 01/23 1.22             
1/22/2023 JobMatch LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR software 01/23 1.22             
2/21/2023 JobMatch LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR software 02/23 1.22             
1/9/2023 Engineered Protection Sys Inc Share of DGRI Administration Office Security System 02/01/23 - 04/30/23 1.18             

3/24/2023 Andrew Guy Sanborn Share of DGRI Administration Multiple Reimbursements 2022/2023 ADMIN TIFA 1.03             
12/15/2022 Fifth Third Bank Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Conference & Travel TIFA 0.90             
2/27/2023 Melvin Eledge Jr Share of DGRI Administration Reimb for expenses 0223 0.89             
3/1/2023 Megan Catcho Share of DGRI Administration Travel Expense: Mileage TIFA 0.84             

3/17/2023 Megan Catcho Share of DGRI Administration Travel Expense: Mileage TIFA 0.58             
12/11/2022 PeopleG2 Share of DGRI Administration Criminal Background Check services 10/22 0.56             
12/12/2022 Worksighted, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Monthly Billing for Dec 0.55             
12/28/2022 Model Coverall Service Inc Share of DGRI Administration Floor Mat Rental 09/22 - 3/23 0.49             
3/12/2023 Model Coverall Service Inc Share of DGRI Administration Floor Mat Rental 02/23-06/23 0.49             
3/19/2023 Model Coverall Service Inc Share of DGRI Administration Floor Mat Rental 02/23-06/23 0.49             
1/29/2023 Model Coverall Service Inc Share of DGRI Administration Floor Mat Rental 09/22 - 3/23 0.48             
1/29/2023 ACO Inc Share of DGRI Administration Keys for office 0.45             
3/24/2023 Arielle Fenlon Share of DGRI Administration A Fenlon- Mileage Reimbursements: ADMIN TIFA 0.28             

1,297.52       

2/28/2023 Paychex Staff Support / Personnel DDA Payroll alloc to projects and funds - 7/1/2022-2/28 50,000.00     
2/16/2023 Priority Health Staff Support / Personnel Health Insurance 01/23 801.16          
2/28/2023 Paychex Staff Support / Personnel DDA Payroll alloc to projects and funds - 7/1/2022-2/28 365.00          
3/18/2023 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 03/18/2023 198.85          
2/4/2023 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 02/04/2023 198.82          

1/21/2023 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 01/21/2023 198.81          
1/7/2023 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 01/07/2023 198.80          

2/18/2023 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 02/18/2023 198.80          
3/4/2023 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 03/04/2023 198.80          

12/10/2022 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 12/10/2022 196.61          
12/24/2022 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 12/24/2022 196.50          
2/14/2023 Selective Insurance Company of America Staff Support / Personnel Selective Insurance Policy 02/23 125.00          
3/27/2023 American United Life-Group Div Staff Support / Personnel OneAmerica Life Insurance 04/23 - 05/23 108.98          
2/27/2023 American United Life-Group Div Staff Support / Personnel OneAmerica Life Insurance 01/23 & 02/23 52.07           
2/27/2023 Blue Cross Blue Shield of Mich Staff Support / Personnel Insurance Premiums 01/23 through 05/23 41.94           

12/19/2022 Blue Cross Blue Shield of Mich Staff Support / Personnel Dental Insurance Premiums 1/23 7.78             
1/22/2023 Selective Insurance Company of America Staff Support / Personnel Selective Insurance Policy 12/22 2.66             

53,090.58     

2/16/2023 US Bank National Association Supplies Admin: Supplies TIFA 32.71           
2/22/2023 Staples Contract and Commercial Inc. Supplies Office supplies 12/22 27.39           
12/6/2022 Staples Contract and Commercial Inc. Supplies Office supplies 11/22 6.57             
3/15/2023 US Bank National Association Supplies Admin: Supplies TIFA 4.35             
1/13/2023 Fifth Third Bank Supplies Admin: Supplies TIFA 3.06             
12/6/2022 Staples Contract and Commercial Inc. Supplies Office supplies 11/22 1.32             

75.40           

1/5/2023 City Treasurer - MobileGR Transit Improvements Dec 2022 MNTIFA Share DASH North Service 6,667.00       
1/27/2023 City Treasurer - MobileGR Transit Improvements Jan 2023 MNTIFA Share DASH North Service 6,667.00       
2/27/2023 City Treasurer - MobileGR Transit Improvements Feb 2023 MNTIFA Share DASH North Service 6,667.00       
3/23/2023 City Treasurer - MobileGR Transit Improvements Mar 2023 MNTIFA Share DASH North Service 6,667.00       

26,668.00     

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 96,747.08$   

STATEMENT C - continued





































1 

December 8, 2022 

To the Members  
Grand Rapids Tax Increment Financing Authority 

We have audited the financial statements of Grand Rapids Tax Increment Financing Authority (the 
�Authority�) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022 and have issued our report thereon dated December 
8, 2022. Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our 
audit. 

Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

As stated in our engagement letter dated August 4, 2022, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management with 
your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your 
responsibilities. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Authority. Such considerations were solely for 
the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal 
control. 

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are 
not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our 
meeting about planning matters on August 23, 2022. 

Significant Audit Findings  

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with 
the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting 
policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the Authority are described in 
Note 2 to the financial statements. As described in Note 2, the Authority adopted GASB 87, Leases, which 
required a right-to-use lease asset and lease liability to be recorded on the balance sheet. 

We noted no transactions entered into by the Authority during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus.  

We noted no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a different 
period than when the transaction occurred.  

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management�s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly 
from those expected.  

There were no significant balances, amounts, or disclosures in the financial statements based on sensitive 
management estimates. 



To the Members December 8, 2022 
Grand Rapids Tax Increment Financing Authority 

2 

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.  

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in performing and completing our audit. 

Disagreements with Management 

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant 
to the financial statements or the auditor�s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 
arose during the course of our audit.  

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. We 
did not detect any misstatements as a result of audit procedures. 

Significant Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, business conditions affecting the Authority, and business plans and strategies that may affect 
the risks of material misstatement, with management each year prior to our retention as the Authority�s 
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship, and 
our responses were not a condition of our retention.  

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated December 8, 2022.  

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a second opinion on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of 
an accounting principle to the Authority�s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor�s 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, 
there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the members and management of the Authority and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 

Joe Kowalski 

William Brickey 



AGENDA
MONROE 
NORTH 
TIFA 

DATE: April 10, 2023 

TO: Monroe North TIFA 

FROM: Tim Kelly, AICP 
DGRI President & CEO 

SUBJECT: Proposed FY24 Budget and Priority Plan 

Each year the Monroe North Tax Increment Finance Authority (MNTIFA) recommends a one-year 
budget and five-year priority plan to the City Commission for investment in the Monroe North 
neighborhood.  With GR Forward now an approved amendment to the City’s Master Plan, DGRI has 
clearly defined objectives and continues to work diligently to ensure its budgets reflect the plan’s 
recommendations.  

The FY2024 budget and priority plan consists primarily of carry forward priorities that span multiple 
fiscal years. Among them are funding to further improve public spaces along the Grand River, 
pedestrian and mobility infrastructure projects, and funding in FY25 and 26 to implement the River for 
All Guideline recommendations at Canal Street Park. When examined by GR Forward goal the 
breakdown for FY24 is as follows:  

• Goal 1 (Restore the River as the Draw): $175,000
• Goal 2 (Create a True Downtown Neighborhood Home to a Diverse Population): $60,000
• Goal 3 (21st Century Mobility Strategy): $315,000
• Goal 5 (Reinvest in Public Space, Culture and Inclusive Programming): $150,000

As in previous years, the Downtown Grand Rapids Inc. Alliance and various project committees played 
an important role in developing the budget. Following a recommendation from the TIFA Board, DGRI 
staff will present the recommended MNTIFA FY24 budgets to the City Commission requesting 
bottom-line appropriation.  After receiving City Commission appropriation, the Board will adopt their 
final annual budget and priority plans at the next scheduled meeting. 

Recommendation: Recommend the FY2024 Budget Summary to the Grand Rapids City 
Commission and request fund appropriation.  

Agenda Item #05 
April 12, 2023 
MNTIFA Meeting 



FY2022 Actual as of FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2024-28
TABLE 1 - REVENUES Final Budget 01/31/2023 Estimated Request Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast TOTAL
Property Tax Increment 430,632$     432,254$     445,270$     440,817$     445,225$     449,678$     454,175$     458,716$     463,303$     2,271,097    FY2023 Estimate plus 1.0% growth annually
Property Tax Increment - Prior Year Appeals - (5,000)          - (5,000) (5,000)         (5,000)         (5,000)         (5,000)         (5,000)         (25,000)       Reserves for prior year appeals
State of Michigan - Personal Property Losses 137,086       132,973       144,286       144,286 139,957       135,759       131,686       127,735       123,903       659,041       Assumes 3% annual decreases for depreciation
Interest on Investments (123,653)     19,308         132,120       37,123 66,420         68,374         66,404         61,151         57,212         319,561       City Treasurer's estimates - Exhibit L
Miscellaneous Reimbursements - - - - - - - - - - 

TOTAL ANNUAL REVENUES 444,065$     579,535$     721,676$     617,226$     646,603$     648,810$     647,264$     642,603$     639,419$     3,224,699$  

TABLE 2 - ONGOING AND COMMITTED EXPENDITURES
Contractual Services - Annual Audit 5,410$         5,572$         5,595$         5,595$         5,763$         5,936$         5,995$         6,055$         6,116$         29,864$       Staff estimate
Contractual Services - Legal 2,716           5,000           331              5,000           5,000           5,000           5,000           5,000           5,000           25,000         Staff estimate
General Fund Departments Services 28,921         27,389         15,977         27,389         28,056         28,617         29,189         29,773         30,368         146,003       City FY2023-27 Budget Instructions, Exhibit G
Insurance - General Liability 947              637 371              637 1,105           1,160           1,218           1,279           1,343           6,105           City FY2023-27 Budget Instructions, Exhibit E
Share of DGRI Administration 2,628           7,103           2,591           7,103           10,000         10,300         10,609         10,927         11,255         53,091         Share of 29 Pearl NW, operations
Staff Support - City (7xxx) and DGRI (7191) Staff 60,802         100,000       4,082           100,000       125,000       128,750       132,613       136,591       140,689       663,642       Work performed by DGRI and City staff
Supplies 114              200 79 200 200              200              200              200              200              1,000           Supplies purchased solely for Authority work

TABLE 2 EXPENDITURES 101,538       145,901       29,026         145,924       175,124       179,963       184,824       189,825       194,970       924,706       

TABLE 3 - DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT EXPENDITURES
Goal #1:  Restore the River as the Draw and Create a Connected and Equitable River Corridor
Asset and Riverwalk Maintenance - - - - - - - - - - General maintenance / repair of assets 
Downtown Planning - GR Forward/River Governance -              145,000       - - 175,000       - - - - 175,000       River governance support
Grand River Restoration - - - - - 300,000       300,000       - 600,000 Partial support for river restoration
Riverwalk Retrofits - - - - - - - - - - "River for All" implementation

Sub-Total Goal #1 - 145,000       - - 175,000       - 300,000 300,000       - 775,000 

Goal #2:  Create a True Downtown Neighborhood Which is Home to a Diverse Population
District Enhancement Grants - 50,000         - - 50,000         50,000         50,000         50,000         50,000         250,000       Streetscape Guideline implementation
Infrastructure Improvements - Miscellaneous - 10,000         5,486           - 10,000         10,000         10,000         10,000         10,000         50,000         Tree plantings

Sub-Total Goal #2 -              60,000         5,486           - 60,000         60,000         60,000         60,000         60,000         300,000       

Goal #3:  Implement a 21st Century Mobility Strategy
Accessibility and Streetscape Improvement 16,649         75,000         - - 150,000       50,000         50,000         50,000         50,000         350,000       Pedestrian priority street design & construction
Bicycle Infrastructure Improvements 150              15,000         - - 15,000         15,000         15,000         15,000         15,000         75,000         Mobility infrastructure improvements
Mason Street / Ottawa Ave Reconstruction 4,105           - - - - - - - - - Share of street reconstruction projects
Newberry Street Reconstruction - - - - - - - - - - Share of streetscape improvements
Women's Way Alley Improvements & Activation - - - - - - - - - - Approved on March 11, 2020
Transit Improvements in Monroe North District 80,004         150,000       46,669         150,000       150,000       150,000       150,000       150,000       150,000       750,000       Share of DASH infrastructure

Sub-Total Goal #3 100,908       240,000       46,669         150,000       315,000       215,000       215,000       215,000       215,000       1,175,000    

Goal #5:  Reinvest in Public Space, Culture, and Inclusive Programming
Canal Street Park Improvements 52,108         750,000       - - - 750,000 750,000       - - 1,500,000    Funding for park improvements
Urban Recreation Plan - 50,000         - - 150,000       50,000 50,000         50,000         50,000         350,000       Park activation

Sub-Total Goal #5 52,108         800,000       - - 150,000       800,000       800,000       50,000         50,000         1,850,000    

TOTAL GR FORWARD PROJECT EXPENDITURES 153,016$     1,245,000$  52,155$       150,000$     700,000$     1,075,000$  1,375,000$  625,000$     325,000$     4,100,000$  

TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENDITURES 254,554$     1,390,901$  81,181$       295,924$     875,124$     1,254,963$  1,559,824$  814,825$     519,970$     5,024,706$  

ANNUAL FUND BALANCE SUMMARY
Beginning Fund Balance 2,247,596$  2,437,107$  2,437,107$  2,437,107$  2,758,409$  2,529,888$  1,923,736$  1,011,177$  838,954$     2,758,409$  
Plus:  Annual Revenues 444,065       579,535       721,676       617,226       646,603       648,810       647,264       642,603       639,419       3,224,699    
Less:  Annual Expenditures (254,554)     (1,390,901)   (81,181)       (295,924)      (875,124)     (1,254,963)  (1,559,824)  (814,825)     (519,970)     (5,024,706)  

Ending Fund Balance 2,437,107$  1,625,741$  3,077,602$  2,758,409$  2,529,888$  1,923,736$  1,011,177$  838,954$     958,403$     958,403$     

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN
MONROE NORTH TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY

Five Year Priority Plan
Preliminary Plan - Draft 2/14/2023

FY2023


	01 MNTIFA Agenda
	02 MNTIFA DRAFT Dec 14 Unapproved Minutes
	03 MNTIFA 3-31-2023 Statements
	SUBJECT: FY2023 Interim Financial Statements Through March 31, 2023

	04 70757 GR (Monroe North) 0622 FS Final - 2
	04a 70757 GR (Monroe North) 0622 AU 260 Final - 2
	05 MNTIFA FY23 Budget Cover Memo
	SUBJECT: Proposed FY24 Budget and Priority Plan

	05a MN FY24 PriPlan
	FY24-28 




